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Samuel McKenzie House 
Avilton 
Private 

ca.1840 

The Samuel McKenzie House is a gable-roofed, l~ story, 
four bay by two bay heavy timber frame structure on a stone 
foundation. Of special note is the original woodwork, paint 
colors and ornamentation that are retained on the interior of the 
two room plan. 

To the small Catholic community that settled on Walnut Hill, 
the Samuel McKenzie House was an important gathering place; 
religious services were held there regularly until a proper church 
building could be built in the neighborhood. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The Samuel McKenzie House is a gable-roofed, l~ story, four bay by two 
bay timber frame structure on a stone foundation. Its weatherboarded exterior 
or:iginally had a full length porch sheltering the two door facade, however, this 
and a side wing have deteriorated and been removed. Of special note is the 
original woodwork, paint colors, and ornamentation that are retained on the interior 
of the two room plan. 

The house is located on the east side of Walnut Hill, facing east, .6 mile north 
of Blue Lick Run and .5 mile south of St. Ann's Church. The wooded hill rises steeply 
at the rear of the house and in the front it is treeless, dips slightly and then 
rises gently up to Blue Lick Road, creating a small valley. A dry stream bed passes 
in front of the house and a small orchard of about ten apple trees is located 
approximately 15 feet beyond the north endwall. 

The facade (E elevation) has a symmetrical, four bay arrangement with two center 
doors spaced very close together, and a window on each side. The northern door is 
board and batten, while the southern one is a raised, four-panel door. A 6/6 sash 
window pierces the northern end of the wall. This window and both doors are without 
surrounds. The southern window, a 1/1 sash, has a plain board surround and a molded 
dripboard. The upper level of the facade is urfenestrated because the porch that 
formerly stretched across this elevation was an extension of the roof from the main 
block, and fully misked this upper portion of the wall. According to a 1920 photo­
graph of the house ; the southern half of the porch was enclosed, sided with 
weatherboard, and lit by a small window on its eastside. The open area of the 
porch was supported by two posts with a baluster railing on the east edge, and two 
steps leading up to the north side. The roofline was continuous from the ridge to 
the cornice of the porch. Recently, the porch has fallen away from the house and its 
dry-laid, split stone foundation has tumbled. 

The north endwall is pierced by a 6/6 sash window and a four-panel door (E and W 
ends respectively} on the ground level, and its gable is lit by a 6/3 sash window. 
The door apparently is an alteration, as the 1920 photograph, previously cited, shows 
a 6/6 sash window in the present location of the door. 

A board and batten door occupies the extreme western end of the south endwall. 
Two four-pane casement windows pierce the gable. Scars on the siding reveal the 
outlines of a one story, gable-roofed wing that projected from the western half of this 
wall, encompassing the door and a brick stove chimney on a concrete base. 

The rear (W elevation) is pierced by two windows at the ground level: a 1/1 sash 
at the southern end, and a small, square, single pane fixed window at the northern end. 

The house is situated on a split stone foundation with a full basement below. 
Its frame is heavily constructed; the basE!lnent joists being logs hewn on their top 
and bottom faces, and the sills, joists, plates, cornerposts, and swaybracing being 
square hewn timbers held together in pegged, mortice and tenon joints. Six posts 
form the major vertical support for the building with locations at the four corners 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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The Samuel McKenzie House is significant architecturally as a rare example of 
hewn timber frame construction in Garrett County. Equally significant is the 
interior design of the house. Original colors, woodwork, and ornamentation have 
been preserved. To the small Catholic connnunity that settled on Walnut Hill, the 
Samuel McKenzie House was an important gathering place; religious services were 
held there regularly until a proper chuch could be built in the ne~ghborhood. 

This house is one of the few examples in Garrett County of a building constructed 
in timber frame. Sections of the James Drane House (G-II-B-010), c. 1800, and 
the Coddington Homestead (G~rr-A-110), c. 1835, are the only other early timber 
frame buildings in the county. Extant 19th century painted wall decoration 
is a rarity- in this· area, as-well. The variety of· colors' used on the walls of 
this house reveal a style of interior decoration used during this period. Also, the 
fine painted details such as the scalloped ceiling border, and the beaded false chair 
rail give an indication of the level of craftsmanship available. 

The Catholic community on Walnut Hill, designated as the "McKenzie Settlement" 
at the beginning of the nineteenth century, was without a church building for 
worship. From 1837 to 1859 services were held at the home of a neighbor, Christian 
Garlitz. After Garlitz sold his farm, Samuel McKenzie served the community 
by opening h~s home for church services until 1874 when St. Ann's Church was 
constructed. 
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Samuel McKenzie House 
(Description #7 - Continued) 

and the midpoints of the facade and rear walls. Between these posts straight­
sawn, 3" by 4~" studs are fixed in place with cut nails. The spaces between 
the studs are filled with sawdust, and the entire frame is covered with weather­
board. 

Eleven sets of rafters butted at the peak form the roof frame. The circular 
sawn, random width boards laid horizontally across the rafters are covered with 
several layers of tarpaper and asphalt roll roofing material. 

The interior is divided into two rooms of equal size per floor by a wall 
of random width, beaded vertical plank. An enclosed staircase on the south side 
of the partition wall rises, in a straight run from the rear wall, nine treads 
to the upper floor. A small closet occupies the space below the stairs, its 
door opening on the narrow side of the staircase. 

The first floor, south room was remodeled by covering the walls and ceiling 
with plasterboard. It is the only room where the original woodwork and wall 
treatment are not visible. 

The walls in the first floor, north room are paneled with horizontal, random 
width, beaded board. A beaded chair rail surrounds the room on all walls but 
the partition wall. At the corners of the room the chair rails overlap, the 

,.- base of one touching the top of the other, so that they are fixed to the walls 
at differing heights rather than being mitred together at the same level. Random 
width, flat boards line the ceiling. A flimsy partition wall made of studs covered 
with corrugated cardboard and wallpaper, was installed in this room in the mid­
twentieth century to create a front and a back room out of this space. 

Due to the application of many layers of wallpaper over the years, the original 
paint colors and ornamentation in this room have been preserved underneath. The 
chair rails are painted pale blue, the wall area above it is light green, and the 
lower wall is black with a subsequent layer of deep yellow-gold. The ceiling's 
color is a very dark blue-green. A scalloped border painted just below the ceiling 
is the same blue-green color. Rather than stenciling the scalloped border, lines 
were drawn on the wall, then painted in. The partition wall is painted in 
the same color scheme as the other walls, however, since it has no actual chair rail, 
a dark blue-green chair rail was painted on, down to the fine detail of depicting 
the beaded edge that distinguishes the real chair rail. 

In the stair case the walls were originally light green with black steps and 
a painted black baseboard. The walls were later painted white, and the baseboard 
and steps received additional coats of red, then yellow-gold paint. 

The walls and ceiling in both rooms of the upper story are paneled with random 
width, horizontal board that was originally whitewashed and later covered with 
wallpaper. The partition wall is made of roughly finished, straight-sawn board. 
The door between the rooms is a dark blue-green batten door made of beaded boards. 

The house has been unoccupied since the 1950's, so some deterioration has 
taken place. However, this injury to the building does not mar the integrity of 
the structure or disturb its decorative details. 
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Roi;ne of Samuel McKeo~ie 

present owner. Samuel McKenzie distinguished himself 
by zealous interest in church affairs. His unremitting 
efforts to keep the flame of faith buming in the heart:; 
of the little mountain flock are remembered and spoker! 
of to this day. 

Lso McKenzie. at whose house the August Sac6fic•.:: 
was also otrered. 1s the father of Zacharias, Sedras an<.! 
l\Iarcellus, who are still living. Their house is a quar­
ter of a mile to the south of Samuel's. For twenty-fiv\! 
years before the church was built both S:lmuel and Lev 
:\lcKenzie threw oi;en their doors to the children anrl 
taught them catechism. They were very conscientious in 
the perforrrance of this duty, as their schoLlrs testify 
to the prese!lt day. 

In surrirrer :'.fass was :.'.so ·~aid in two schoolhouses. 
On:? of them stoo.l southwest of the present church, on 
the road to Christie Run. several hundred yar,Js from the 
cross ro !.s. The oth ·•r was situated on the road to Blue­
lick Run, about a quarte~ of .l mile fro'll the cross roads. 
or thi:> priests who visi 4 eu the miss·on in those days, tht• 
Record (42) mc>ntions especially the Rev. Fathers ~!or­
gan and Valentine Schmitt. 

C4:?l St. :\Cichael's Bnptismal Record. Years 1866. 1868. 

4.1 



FIRST CHURCH 

"The beautiful places oC lhe wildemess shall grow 
fat and Lbe hills sball IJe girded about with joy." 
Psalm G4 :13. 

In 1871, the ReY. Valentine Schmitt, reviewing the 
McKenzie Settlement, found there about fifteen Catholic 
families. and with their hearty consent decided to build 
a church. A plot of giound comprising one acre and ad­
joining the public road on \Valnut Hill, about one hun­
dred and fifty rods northwest of the former "Church­
house" was selected by Father Schmitt. This property 

Leo McKen:t.ie's Home 

was a part of the McKenzie farm and° was donated by 
Jeremiah and his wife Catherine to the zealous mission­
ary, though the deeds for the same were not executed 
till August 4, 1884. {43) This section has an altitude of 
2770 feet. With the cheerful co-operation of the parisb 
a little church was built in a cluster of pines at the brow 
of the bill. After a lapse of some thirty years the beauti­
ful location of the old church in its little pine grove woul<l 
almost suggest the title, "St. Ann's of the Pines," and iH 
the admiration of visitors to this historic little spot. 

The principal question that vexed Father Schmitt 
in his undertaking was that of funds. Recourse was had 

(43) Llber W. H. T., No. 9, folio 536. etc., Oakland, Md. 
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